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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

z AW REGION 4

z m ; ATLANTA FEDERAL CENTER

% 4 &1 FORSYTH STHFET
f—— ATLANTA, GEORGIA 30303-8880

MAY 19 o1

CERTIFIED MATIL 70051 160000198999911
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

I. Clark Wright

Davis Hartiman Wright, PLLC
2689 Pollock Street

New Rern, North Carclina 28360

Re: Consent Agreement and Final Order
Docket No. CWA-04.2011-3504(b)

Dear Mr. Wright:

Enclosed is ¢ copy of the Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFQ) that has been finalized by the
1J.8. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4 and the Regional Judicial Officer, Please make note of

the provisions under Section V.

Thank you for your coeperation in settling this matter. Should you have any guestions or concemns,
please contact Mr. Chris Parker of my statf at (404) 562-9838, or your altorney may contact Mr. Philip

Mancusi-Ungaro, Associste Regional Counsel, at (404} 562.9519,

Sincercly,
"?\:‘\ i BN i :{! Ay

Molly Davm Acting Chief
Clean Wuter Enforcoment Branch
Water Protection Division

Enclosure

g Mr, David Leksan
U8, Arny Corps of Englroers, Washingion Field Office

. John [{emessey
North Carolina Department of Environment and Natural Regoures

Mr. Ward Zlmmerman
Narth Carsling Dzpartment of Justice

Ms. Kimberly Hudrick
N Carolina Depariment of Environment and Natural Resources
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

REGION 4
IN THE MATTER OF 3
) . @
Mr. Karl Pace ) ADMINISTRATIVE FooItom
Wysocking Wildlife Sanctuary } CONSENT AGREEMENT ANIE- 31 0
Hyde County, North Carolina ) FINAL PENALTY ORDER  © _
} % T
RESPONDENT. ) Docket No.: CWA-04.2011-8504) —
) oo

1. Statmtory Authority

1. This is a civil penalty proceeding under Section 30X XA} of the Clean Water
Act (CWA), 33 U.S.C. § 1318(gM2YA), andl the Consolidated Ruley of Practice Governing the
Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties, Issuance of Compliance ar Corrective Action
Orders and the Revocation, Termination or Suspension of Permits, published at 64 Fed. Reg.
40176 (July 23, 1999}, codified at 40 Code of Federal Regulations (C.F.R.) Part 22 (Part 22).

2. The Administrator has delegated this authority to the Regional Administrator
Region 4, who in turn has redelegated this autherity to the Director of the Water Protection
Pivision, who in turn has delegated this authority to the Chief of the Clean Water Enforcement

Branch of EPA Region 4 (Complainant).

H. Statatory and Regndatory Background

3. Section 309(g) 1) A) of the CWA, 33 1L8.C, § 1319(pX1KA), states "[wihenever,
on the basis of any information available - the Administrator finds that any person has violated
[section 301 of the CWA, 33 US.C, § 13111, ... the Administrator . . . may, after consultation
with the State in which the violation ocous, assess a class 1 ¢ivil penalty or a elass I civil
penalty under {33 U.8.C. § 131902 B)L"

4, Section 301(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311{a}, states “{e]xcept a3 in
compliance with . _ . {Secrion 404 of the CWA, 33 LL.8.C. § 1314], the discharge of any [dredged
of {ili maicrial] by any person shall be unlawful” Scotion 404 of the CWA, 33 1U1.8.C. § 1344,
authorizes the Secretary of the Army, scting through the Chiel of Engineers, U8, Army Corps of
Engineers {COE), to issue permits for the discharge of dredged or fill material into navigable
waters,

5. Section 302(12) ol the TWA 33 US.C. § 1362(12), defives a "discharge of
polhdanis” as “lalny addition of any pollatant w pavigable waters from any point source ...



6. Section 302{14) of the CWA, 33 U.3.C. & 1362(14), defines “point source™ as
“falny discernible, confined and discrete convevance, inchuding but not limited to any pipe,
ditch, chanmel, tunncl, conduit [or] discrete fissure . . . from which pollutants are or may be
discharged.”

7. Section S02{7) of the CWA, 33 US.C. § 1362(7), defines "navigable waters™ as
“1ihe waters of the United States, including the territorial seas.”

8. Federal regulations under 40 C.F.R, § 232.2 define the term “waters of the United
States™ to include “wetlands.”

g, Federal regulations under 40 CER. § 232.2 and 33 C.FR. § 328.3(b) define
“*wetlands™ as “[tlhose areas that are fnundated or safurated by surface or groundwater at a
frequency and duration sufficient to suppori, and that under pormal circurastances do support, 3
prevalence of vegetation typically adapted for life in saturated sofl conditions.”

I1I. Allegations

10.  The term “Discharge Area” means the jurisdictional waters that have been
impacted cither through filling or dredging as a result of the unauthorized activities that are the
subject of this enforceincot action. More specificaily, the Discharge Area is approximately three
acres of tidal and freshwater wetlands adjacent to and abutting Hickory Creek and Wysocking
Bay. Hickory Creek and Wysocking Bay are navigable waters of the Unlied States. The Site is
tocated at 3910 Gull Rock Road, near the town of Engelhard, Hyde County, Nonth Caroling, near
tatitude 35°24°02.68" north and longitude 76°05°23.217 west (Discharge Area). The Discharge
Area is indicated on the enclosed Exhibdis A and B,

11, The term “Site” means the parcel or parcels of land on which the Discharge Arca
is tocated.

12.  Respondent, Mr. Karl Pace, at all times relevant to this Consent Agreement and
Final Order, was the owner and operator of the Site,

13.  Respondent is a person within the definition set forth under section 502(5) of the
WA, 3311.8.C § 136205,

14,  Comunencing on or sbout November 24, 2008, until Septenber §, 2010,
Respondent, or those acting on behalf of the Respondent, discharged dredged and/or fiH marerial
inte wetlands on the Site using earth moving machinery, during vnauthorized activities
associated with the construction of dikes.

15.  Respondent impacted approximately three acres of forested freshwater and tidal
marsh wetlands adjacent to and abutting Hickory Creek and Wysocking Bay, navigable waters of
the United States.
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16.  The discharged dredged and/or fill material, including earthen material depusited
at the Discharge Area, are “pollutants™ as defined under the CWA § 502(6), 33 UL.8.C. § 1362(6).

17.  The garth moving machinery employed by the Respondent to deposit the dredged
and/or fill material at the Discharge Area are “point sources” as defined under the CWA §
502(14), 33 U.S.C. § 1362014},

(8. A "discharge of a pollutant,” as defined at Section S02(12¥A) of thc CWA, 33
{1.8.C, § 1362 (12XA), is any addition of any poilutant to navigable waters from any point

sonarce.

19.  Respondent’s placement of the dredged and/or fill material at the Discharge Area
constitites a “discharge of pollutants” as defined under the CWA § 302(12), 33 US.C. §
1362{12).

20, Section 301w of the CWA, 33 U1.8.C, §1311{a), makes unlawiul the discharge of
any pollutant into waters of the United States except as in compliance with certain sections of the
CWA, including Section 404, 33 U.5.C. §1344. A Section 404 pennil is a legal prerequisite to
discharges of the type described above.

21. At no time during the discharge of dredged and/or fill material at the Discharge
Ares on or about November 24, 2008, to the present, did the Respondent possess a permit under
Section 404 of the CWA, 33 ULS.C. § 1344, anthorizing the activities performed by Respondem.

22.  ‘The discharges have, therefore, been made in violation of Section 301{a) of the
CWA. Each discharge by ihe Respendent of pollutants into navigable waters without the
required permit issued under Section 404 of the CWA, 33 US.C. § 1344, is & violation of
Section 301(a) of the CWA, 33 US.C. § 1311¢a)

23,  Each discharge by the Respondent of pollutants into navigable waters without the
required permit issued under Section 404 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1344, is a violation of
Section 301{zr of the UWA, 33 USC § 13114},

24.  Each day the material discharged by the Respondent remaing in waters of the
Unsted States without the requived permit under Section 404 of the CWA, 33 US.C. § 1344,
constitutes a day of viclation of Section 301 of the CWA, 33 U.5.C. § 1311,

IV. Stipulations and Findiogs

25.  Complainant and Respondent have conferred for the purpose of settlement under
40 CFR. § 22.18 and desire to resolve this matter and settie the allegations described herein
without a formal bearing. Therefore, without gathering any evidence or estimony, making of
any argument, or adjudicating any issue in this matier, and in accordance with 40 CFR. §
22.134{b), this Administrative Consent Agreement and Final Penalty Order will siroulianeously
commence sad conclude this matter.
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26.  For the purposes of this Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFQ),
Respondent adimnits the jurisdictional allegations sef out above and the factual allegations set out
ahave,

27.  Respondent barchy waives his right to contest the allegations set out above and its
right to appeal the Final Order acoompanying this Consent Agreement.

28.  Respondent consents to the assessment of and agrees to pay the administrative
penalty as set forth in this CAFO and consents to the other conditions set forth in this CAFO.

4, By signing this CAFQ, Respondent certifies that the information ke has supplied
concerning this matter was at the time of submission, and is, truthful, accurate, and complete for
each such submission, response and statement. Respondent realizes that there are significant
penaltics for submitting false or misleading information, including the possibility of fines and/or
imprisonment for knowing submission of such information,

30,  EPA reserves the right to assess and collect any and all civil penalties for any
violation described in this Consent Agreement 1o the extent that any information or certification
provided by Respondent was materially false or inacourate at the time such information or
certification was provided o EPA,

31.  Complainant and Respomndent agree to setrle this matter by their execution of this
CAFQ. The paties agree that the settlement of this matfer is in the public interest and that this
CAFO is consistent with the applicable reguirements of the CWA,

V. Penalty and Paviment

32, Under Scetion 309%(g32)b) of the CWA, 33 US.C. § 1319eX2)(b}, and 40
CFR. § 19, and considering the nature of the violations and other relevam factors, EPA bas
determined thet TWENTY THREE THOUSAND DOLLARS (323,000 is an appropriate civil
penalty to settle this action,

33, Respondent shall submit payment of the penaity specified 1o e preceding
paragraph within thisty (30} days of the effective date of this CAF() via a cashicr's or certified
check, payable to the order of "Treasurer, United States of America.” The check shall reference
on its face the name of Respondent and the Docket Number of this CAFQ. Such payment shall
be submitted by U 8. Postal Service to;

LLS, Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties

Cincimmati Finance Center

PO Box 979077

St. Louts, MO 631876000
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For other payment options (Ex: Wire Transfers, Overnight Mail, ACH, and On Line) please
refer o Antachment A.

34, At the time of payment, Respondent shall send a separate copy of the check, and a
written statement that payment has been made in accordance with this CAFQO, (o the following
persons at the following addresses:

11.8. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4
Office of Environmemtal Accountahility

61 Forsyth Street, 8.W.

Atlanta, Georgia 30303 -8960

ATTN: Ms. Patricia Bullock - Regional Hearing Clerk

and

Ms, Mary E. Halback

Wetlands Enforcement Section

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4
61 Forsyth Sireet, S.W,

Atlanta, Gestgia 30303-8960

35,  Civil penalty payments under this CAFO are penaltics within the meaning of
Section 162(D) of the Internal Revenue Code, 26 U1.8.C. § 162(5, or of 26 CFR. § 1162-21 and
are not tax deductible expenditures for purposes of federal law.

36, Under Section 3089(X9) of the CWA, 33 US.C. § 1319(g)9), fallure by the
Respondent to pay the pesalty assessed by the CAFD in full by #1s due date may subject the
Respondent to a civil action 1o collect the assessed penalty plus interest (at cusrently provailing
rates from the effective date of this CAFO), attorney’s fees, costs for coliection proceedings and
a quarterly noapayment penalty for each quarter during which such failurc to pay persists. Such
norpayment penalty shall be In an amount equal to 20 percent (20%) of the sggregate amount of
such penalty and nonpayment penalty which are unpaid as of the beginning of such quarter, In
any such collection action, the validity, amount and appropriateness of the penalty and of this
CAF shall not be subject 1o review,

V1.  General Provisions

37 This CAFO shall not relieve Respondent of his obligation to comply with all
applicabte provisions of fuderal, siate, or focal law, sor shall it be construed to be a mling on, or
determination of, any issue related 1o any federal, state, or local permit. Other than as expressed
herein, gompliance with this CAFO shall not be a defense 1o any actions subsequently
commenced under federal laws and regulations administered by the EPA.

38 Nothing in this CAFO shall be construed as prohibiting, altering, or in any way
limiting the ability of United States 1o seek any other remedies or sanctions available by virtue of
Respondent’s violstion of this CAFO or of the statutes and regulations upon which this

5



agreement is based, or for Respondent's violation of any federal or state statute, regulation or
perat,

39, Excopt as otherwise set forth in this document, this CAFO constitutes 2 settiement
by Complainant and Respondent of all claims for civil penalties under the CWA with respect to
only thase violations alleged in this CAFG. Except as otherwise sen forth in s document,
compliance with this CAFQ shall resolve the allegations of violations comained in this CAFQ.
Nothing in this CAFO is intended to nor shall be construed to operate in any way to resolve any
crimyinal liability of the Respondent, or other liability resulting from violations that were ot
alfeged in this CAFO, Other than a5 expressed in this document, Complainant does not waive
any right to bring an enforcement action against Respondent for violation of any federal or state
statute, regulation or permis, to initiate an action for imminent and substantial endangerment, or
to pursue crisminal enforcement.

40,  Each undersigned representative of the partes to this CAFO centifies that he or
she is fully authorized 1o enter into the terms and conditions of this CAFO and 1o exeente and
legaily bind that party to 1t

41.  This CAFO applies to and is binding upon Respondent and any officers, directors,
employees, agents, successors und assigns of the Respondent,

42, Any change in the legal status of Respondent ncluding, but not linsited to, any
transfer of assets of real or personal property, shall not alier Respondent's responsibiiities under
this CAFQ,

43, Each party shall bear its own costs and attorneys fees in connection with the
agtion resolved by this CAFO.

4.  Inaccordance with 46 CFR. § 22.5, the individuals below are authorized to
receive service relating to this proceeding.

For Camplainant

Philip Mancusi-Ungaro

Aszsuciate Regional Counsel

.S, Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4
61 Forsyth Street

Atlanta, Georgia 30303

{404) 562-951¢

For Respondent
L Clark Wright
Davis Hartman Wright, PLLC
204 Pallock Street

New Bern, Nowth Caroling 28360



45, The parties acknowledge and agree that this CAFQ s subject to the requirements
Af 40 CF R, & 22.45(c)4), which provides a right 1o petition to set aside a gonsent agreement
and proposed final order based on comments recetved during the public comment period.

46.  Under Section 309(g) of the CWA, 33 US.C. § 1319(g), and 40 C.F.R. §
22.38(b}, Complainant represents that the State of North Caroling was provided a prior
opportunity to consult with Complainant reparding this mater,

47, This CAFO in no way affects the rights of the Complamant as against any person
or entity not a party to this CAFO.

VIL  Release by Respondent

48.  Respondent hereby covenants nol 1o sue and agrees not to assert any claims of
causcs of action against the United States, moluding any department, agency or instrumentality
of the United States, with respect 1o the matters addressed and resolved in this CAFQ, inchuding
but not limited to, any ¢laim that any of the matters or actions described in this CAF( have
resulted in z taking of Respondunt’s property without compensation.

VI  Effective Date

49, The cffective date of this CAFO shall be the date on which the CAFO is filed with
the Regional Hearing Clerk.



AGREED AND CONSENTED TO:

FOR RESPONBDENT, KARI PACE:

L ) ‘
:‘\(*M-»-’Q/ ! (A Date: gjfii“

Kl Phoe

Far COMPLAINANT, U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY:

\I‘\S\R} wa > Date:
Molly P. Davis MAY 17 i)
Acting Chief, Clean Water Enforcement Branch

Water Protection Division

1LS. EPA Region 4
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EXHIBITA
Wysocking Wildlite Sanctuary
Hyde County, North Carolina

3.000 6,000 Feet
i §
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EXHIBITB
Wysocking Wildlife Sanctuary
Hyde County, North Carolina

1,000 2,000 Feet
i |




UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

REGION 4
IN THE MATTER OF: }
)
)
Kl Pace ) ADMINISTRATIVE
Wysocking Wildlife Sanctuary ) CONSENT AGREEMENT AND
Hyde County, Nerth Carolina ) FINAL PENALTY QORDER
)
RESPONDENT. ) Docket No.; CWA-04-2011-5504(b)
)
FINAL ORDER

In accosdance with the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative
Assessment of Civil Peraliies, {sxsuance of Compliance or Corrective Action Orders and the
Revocation, Termination or Suspension of Permivs, 40 CF.R, Part 22, and suthoritics delegated
e me, the forgoing Consent Agreement is hereby approved and incorporated by reference into
this Final Order. Under Section 309(gd2)BY of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 13190 2XB),

Respondent is hereby ordered to comply with the terms of the foregoing Consent Agreement,

U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

jgim-/ A fjf_A,oféf Dute: At / i%j 23223{;’
Susan B. Schub 7
Regional Judicial Officer

U.S. EPA, Region 4




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

THERERY CERTIFY that 1 have this day served a frue and correct copy of the foregoing
Comsent Agreement and Final Order in the matter of ! Dacket No, CWA-04.2011-5504(b) on
the parties Hsted below in the manncer indicated:

EPA Internal Mail: Christopher Parker
Clean Water Enforcement Branch
Wetlands Enforcement Section
U.S. EPA, Region 4
Atlanta Fedeval Center
61 Forsyth Strect, S.W,
Atlanta, Georgia 30303-8960

By hand-delivery: Philip Mancusi-Ungaro
Associate Regional Counsel
U.S. EPA, Region 4
61 Forsyth Street, S.W.
Arlamnta, Georgia 30303

Ry Certified mail, L Clark Wright
rofusn receipt reguested: Davis Hartman Wright, PLLO
2089 Pollock Street

New Bem, North Caroling 28560
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Dated: g.w } ?“!lf S \ \b‘\& 6 ﬁ,ti ﬁf)m

Patricia Bullock

Regional Hearing Clerk

U. S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4
Atlanta Federal Center

61 Forsyth Street, S. W,

Atlanta, Georgia 30303

(404) 562-9511




